














































































































1 

City of Dixon 
Plan Commission 

Council Chambers – City Hall 
October 22, 2020 – 6:00 pm 

 
The Dixon Plan Commission meeting was called to order by Chairperson Whaley on October 22, 2020 at 6:00 
pm in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 121 W Second Street. 
 
Roll call – Commission Members present: Ferguson, Gates, Lawton, Seagren, Wiggins, Yount, and Chairperson 
Whaley. Commission Members absent Aurand, Bishop. City of Dixon Staff present: Tim Shipman, Building 
Official. 
 
Chairperson Whaley asked for changes or corrections to the minutes that were presented from the September 23, 
2020 meeting. After hearing none, Member Wiggins motioned that the minutes be accepted as presented. 
Member Gates seconded the motion. All voted Yea, motion carried. 
 

PETITION FOR SPECIAL USE 
1387, 1389 N Galena Ave 

Petitioner: Kreider Services Inc. 
 
Chair Whaley presented the information contained in the petition and asked if there was anyone in the audience 
to represent the petition. Attorney Dan Kapolnek was present along with petitioner Jeff Stauter of Kreider 
Services. 
 
The Public Hearing was called to order. Chair Whaley asked if there was anyone wishing to address the 
Commission. Attorney Kapolnek advised that he was representing Kreider Services. He stated that notices were 
given to the surrounding neighbors and notice appeared in the Telegraph. Jeff Stauter of Kreider Services 
informed the commission that Kreider was moving some parts of the organization to the Galena Avenue 
addresses. They want to have a community based public location. The building will house light assembly and 
offices for approximately 50 people. 
 
A motion was made by Member Wiggins and seconded by Member Lawton to approve the petition as presented. 
Voting Yea:  Ferguson, Gates, Lawton, Seagren, Yount, Wiggins and Chair Whaley. Voting Nay: None. Motion 
carried. Chair Whaley closed the Public Hearing. 
 

PETITION FOR APPROVAL OF PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLATS 
OF SUBDIVISION FOR SAUK VALLEY BANK PALMYRA SUBDIVISION FOR ADDRESSES 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS 639, 641 AND 643 PALMYRA RD 
  Petitioner:  Wickert Properties, LLC 

 
Chair Whaley presented the next petition and called the Public Hearing to Order. Attorney Kapolneck again 
introduced himself and advised that he represented Wickert Properties and had sent notice to adjacent 
landowners as well as putting notification in the Telegraph. He stated that they were looking to divide the 
currently two properties into three. There would be businesses on two of the lots and a residence on the third.  
 
A motion was made by member Seagren and seconded by member Gates to approve the petition as presented. 
Voting Yea: Ferguson, Gates, Lawton, Seagren, Yount, Wiggins and Chair Whaley. Voting Nay: None. Motion 
carried and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
As there was no further business to discuss, Chairperson Whaley called for a motion to adjourn. A motion was 
made by Member Yount and seconded by Member Wiggins to adjourn the meeting. Chairperson Whaley 
declared the meeting adjourned at 6:10 p.m. 
 
Recorded by: Stephanie Terranova, Secretary 



 

 
 

CITY OF DIXON 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF  
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT OF  

SAUK VALLEY BANK PALMYRA SUBDIVISION  
PURSUANT TO THE PETITION OF WICKERT PROPERTIES LLC 

(FORMER WHITE HOUSE RESTAURANT PROPERTY) 
 
________________________________________________________________________  
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE 
 

COUNCIL 
 

OF THE 
 

CITY OF DIXON 
 

THIS _____ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2020      
 
 

________________________________________________________________________  
 
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Council of the City of Dixon, this _____ 
day of November, 2020. 
________________________________________________________________________  
  



- 1 - 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF  
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT OF  

SAUK VALLEY BANK PALMYRA SUBDIVISION  
PURSUANT TO THE PETITION OF WICKERT PROPERTIES LLC 

(FORMER WHITE HOUSE RESTAURANT PROPERTY) 
 
 WHEREAS, Wickert Properties LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, has submitted 
a Petition to the City Council for approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat of Subdivision 
(collectively, the “Subdivision Plats”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the matter has been referred to the Plan Commission for the City of Dixon; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission for the City of Dixon, after conducting a public 
hearing, has recommended the approval of the Subdivision Plats of the property described 
therein, which property is located within the municipal limits of the City of Dixon; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Dixon concurs in the recommendation of 
the Plan Commission. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council for the City of Dixon as 
follows: 
 

SECTION 1:  Wickert Properties LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, is the legal 
owner of record of the property described as follows: 

 
Part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 31, Township 22 North, Range 9 East of 
the Fourth Principal Meridian, City of Dixon, Lee County, Illinois, described as 
follows: 
 
Commencing at the southeast corner of said Southwest Quarter of Section 31; 
thence North 0 degrees 23 minutes 07 seconds East, a distance of 1167.97 feet on 
the east line of said Southwest Quarter, to the Point of Beginning; thence North 
72 degrees 06 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 501.83 feet; thence North 
10 degrees 34 minutes 05 seconds East, a distance of 372.30 feet; thence North 24 
degrees 26 minutes 35 seconds East, a distance of 210.00 feet to the centerline of 
a public road designated Palmyra Road; thence South 55 degrees 42 minutes 54 
seconds East, a distance of 250.00 feet on said centerline; thence South 24 
degrees 26 minutes 35 seconds West, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 55 
degrees 42 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 97.46 feet; thence South 0 
degrees 23 minutes 07 seconds West; a distance of 75.00 feet; thence South 55 
degrees 42 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 149.84 feet to the east line of 
said Southwest Quarter; thence South 0 degrees 23 minutes 07 seconds West, a 
distance of 165.06 feet, to the Point of Beginning, containing 4.24 acres, more or 



- 2 - 

less. 
 
and submits herewith the Subdivision Plats, known as (i) Preliminary Plat of Sauk Valley Bank 
Palmyra Subdivision Part of Southwest Quarter of Section 31, Township 22 North, Range 9 East 
of the Fourth Principal Meridian, City of Dixon, Lee County, Illinois, and (ii) Final Plat (the 
“Final Plat”) of Sauk Valley Bank Palmyra Subdivision Part of Southwest Quarter of Section 31, 
Township 22 North, Range 9 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, City of Dixon, Lee County, 
Illinois. 
 
 SECTION 2:  The Subdivision Plats conform in all respects to the ordinance 
requirements of the City of Dixon governing plats and subdivisions and the subdivision shown 
therein provides for streets and alleys and grounds in conformity with the applicable 
requirements of the official plan of the City of Dixon. 
 
 SECTION 3:  The plans and specifications for the improvements in the said subdivision, 
if any, have been approved by the Plan Commission of the City of Dixon and conform with the 
ordinances of the City of Dixon. 
 
 SECTION 4:  The Subdivision Plats are hereby accepted by the City of Dixon, and the 
Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to accept and approve the Final Plat 
upon its face prior to filing in the Lee County Recorder's Office. 
 
 SECTION 5:  A copy of the Final Plat is to be filed with this Ordinance and made a part 
thereof and a certified copy of this Ordinance filed with the Final Plat in the Lee County 
Recorder's Office. 
 
 SECTION 6:  The City hereby finds that all of the recitals contained in the preambles to 
this Ordinance are full, true and correct and does incorporate them into this Ordinance by this 
reference. 
 
 SECTION 7:  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are, to the 
extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 8:  The City Clerk is herby directed to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet 
form. 
 
 SECTION 9:  The provisions and sections of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be 
separable, and the invalidity of any portion of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder. 
 
 SECTION 10:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval and publication, as required by law. 
 
  
  



- 3 - 

 Passed by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Dixon on the _____ day of 
November, 2020.  
 
 
              
                     Mayor  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________  
  City Clerk  
 



COUNCIL  ACTION  FORM

Date:

Subject:

Presented By:

Description:

FINANCIAL

Is this a budgeted item? YES NO

Line Item #: Title:

Amount Budgeted:  

Actual Cost:             

Under/Over:            

Funding Sources: 

Departments: 

Is this item in the CIP? YES NO CIP Project Number: 

Agenda Item:

11/16/2020
Fredericks

Min/Max Ordinance 14c

The Min/Max program with IMLRMA (this covers work comp and property/liability insurance) is up for
renewal. This program starts at a lower cost; however, if there significant claims in a year, the City
would pay more than if we would have for the traditional plan. 11 years of the City's data was
reviewed and showed that by using the min/max plan over the past 11 years, the City would have
saved $450,000. Upon completing the first year with the min/max program, the City has not had to
pay more than the minimum amount. IMLRMA did not raise our rates for 2021.

The total minimum annual cost for the min/max program is $263,264. The maximum amount we
would have to pay is $407,046. The traditional program would be an annual cost of $335,155.

✔



COUNCIL  ACTION  FORM

Any previous Council actions:
Action Date

Recommendation:

Required Action 

ORDINANCE RESOLUTION     MOTION

Additional Comments:

SECONDED BY: MOTION BY: 

MOVE TO 

YES

NO

ABSENT

ABSTAIN

Mayor 
Arellano

Councilman
Considine

Councilman
Oros

Councilwoman
Marshall

Councilman
Venier

CITY COUNCIL VOTES

VOTES

NO ACTION REQUIRED

Approve the ordinance.

✔

authorize the execution of the RMA Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement.







 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF DIXON 

 
 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.          _ 
 
 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE RMA 
MINIMUM/MAXIMUM CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 

 
______________________________________________________________________________  
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

OF THE 
 

CITY OF DIXON 
 

THIS 16TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2020 
 
 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the City Council of the City of Dixon, this 16th day 
of November, 2020. 
______________________________________________________________________________  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO.   
 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE RMA 
MINIMUM/MAXIMUM CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 

 
Whereas, the Village City Council of the City of Dixon, a member in good standing of the 
Illinois Municipal League Risk Management Association (RMA) and party to the RMA 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Contract, has been fully apprised of the RMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement which amends and supplements the RMA 
Declarations pages dated 01/01/2021 to 01/01/2022 and all endorsements thereto. 
 
 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Dixon finds it to be in the best interest of the 
municipality to make its RMA contribution in accordance with the RMA Minimum/Maximum 
Contribution Agreement. 
 
 Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Dixon: 
 

1. That the execution of the RMA Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement for 
a one (1) year period beginning 01/01/2021 and ending 01/01/22 is hereby 
authorized. 

 
2. That the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby granted authority to execute the 

RMA Minimum/Maximum Agreement which amends and supplements the RMA 
Declarations pages dated 01/01/2021 to 01/01/2022 and all endorsements thereto. 

 
3. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval. 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
                  Clerk 
 
 
Passed this ____ day of _______________, 20__. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _______________, 20__. 
 
 
I, ______________________, Clerk of the City of Dixon, Illinois, do hereby Certify that the 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Ordinance No. _______ as adopted the ____ day of 
_______________, 20__. 
 

____________________________ 
Clerk 







 
 

CITY OF DIXON 
 
 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.                  
 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DIXON CITY CODE 
TITLE V, CHAPTER 13, SECTION 5-13-7  

(ALCOHOLIC LIQUORS – FEES) 
 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

OF THE 
 

CITY OF DIXON 
 

THIS 16TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2019 
 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the City Council of the City of Dixon, this 16th day 
of November, 2020. 
______________________________________________________________________________  



-1- 

ORDINANCE NO.             
 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DIXON CITY CODE 
TITLE V, CHAPTER 13, SECTION 5-13-7  

(ALCOHOLIC LIQUORS – FEES) 
  
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Dixon, Illinois:  
 
 SECTION 1:  That Title V, Chapter 13 of the Dixon City Code, 1963, as amended, is 
hereby further amended by amending Section 5-13-7(A) to read as follows: 
 

“5-13-7:  FEES: 
 
(A) The annual fees for licenses according to class as defined in this chapter shall 
be as follows: 
 
Class Description Fees 
A Restaurant/Hotel excluding Sundays $1,940 
A-1 Restaurant/Hotel including Sundays $2,190 
B Restaurant/Hotel excluding Sundays – Beer 

& Wine Only 
$490 

B-1 Restaurant/Hotel including Sundays – Beer 
& Wine Only 

$650 

C Clubs excluding Sundays $620 
C-1 Clubs including Sundays $710 
D Tavern excluding Sundays $1,940 
D-1 Tavern including Sundays $2,190 
E Pkg Liquor excluding Sundays $1,760 
E-1 Pkg Liquor including Sundays $1,860 
F Grocery Store/Drugstore excluding Sundays $1,760 
F-1 Grocery Store/Drugstore including Sundays $1,860 
F-2 Grocery Store Beer & Wine consumption on 

premises (must have F/F-1)  
$1,860 

G-1 Convenience Store/Gas Station Beer & 
Wine Only 

$1,470 

G-2 Convenience Store/Gas Station  $1,860 
I Beer & Wine consumption on premises 

excluding Sundays 
$1,940 

I-1 Beer & Wine consumption on premises 
including Sundays 

$2,190 

N Beer & Wine Cork & Carry on Premises $47 
O Not For Profit $38 
Temporary Off premise license $60 



-2- 

ORD#          

Temporary Off premise license – if no profit is made $5 
Temporary Petunia Festival $1 
 
SECTION 2: That in all other respects Title V, Chapter 13 shall remain in full force and 

effect. 
  
 SECTION 3:  The provisions and sections of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be 
separable, and the invalidity of any portion of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder.  
 
 SECTION 4:  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are, to the 
extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.  
  
 SECTION 5:  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet 
form.  
  
 SECTION 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval, and publication as required by law.  
  

Passed by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Dixon on the 16th day of 
November, 2020.  

 
 

              
         Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_______________________________  
        City Clerk 
 



RESOLUTION #   
 
 

APPOINTMENTS TO KSB HOSPITAL BOARD 
 
 

WHEREAS, the terms of Colleen T. Henkel and Lynette Knodle will expire on 
December 31, 2020; and   

 
WHEREAS, Colleen T. Henkel and Lynette Knodle have indicated a desire to 

serve again on the KSB Hospital Board; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Dixon concurs in said re-

appointments and new appointments; and 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of 

Dixon that Colleen T. Henkel and Lynette Knodle are hereby re-appointed to the KSB 
Hospital Board for terms commencing January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2023, 
or until their respective successors are duly appointed and qualified. 

 
This Resolution was read and approved this 16th day of December, 2020. 
 
           

      ___________________________________ 
      Liandro Arellano, Jr., Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Keesha Blumhoff, City Clerk 



COUNCIL  ACTION  FORM

Date:

Subject:

Presented By:

Description:

FINANCIAL

Is this a budgeted item? YES NO

Line Item #: Title:

Amount Budgeted:  

Actual Cost:             

Under/Over:            

Funding Sources: 

Departments: 

Is this item in the CIP? YES NO CIP Project Number: 

Agenda Item:

11/16/2020
Fredericks

Budget Resolution - Library 14c

The Library board approved this budget resolution at their October 12, 2020 meeting. The Council
also needs to approve the budget resolution. A copy of the Library Board minutes are included
behind the resolution.



COUNCIL  ACTION  FORM

Any previous Council actions:
Action Date

Recommendation:

Required Action 

ORDINANCE RESOLUTION     MOTION

Additional Comments:

SECONDED BY: MOTION BY: 

MOVE TO 

YES

NO

ABSENT

ABSTAIN

Mayor 
Arellano

Councilman
Considine

Councilman
Oros

Councilwoman
Marshall

Councilman
Venier

CITY COUNCIL VOTES

VOTES

NO ACTION REQUIRED

Approve the resolution.

✔

approve the amendment to the FY20/21 budget with respect to the Library.













 

Glen Hughes made a motion to accept the 2021 Holiday Closings for the Library. 

Marcella Kitson seconded the motion and a verbal vote was taken: 

Rachel Cocar: aye 

Terry Dunphy: aye 

Glen Hughes: aye 

Kevin Marx: aye 

Marcella Kitson: aye 

Tracey Lawton: aye 

Carol Linkowski: aye 

The motion was carried. 

 

 

 

Unfinished Business: 

❖ none 

 

New Business:  

❖ Budget Amendment Proposal: Because of the Covid Crisis, many items and jobs that 

were put on last year’s budget were not complete. As a result, last year’s budget was 

under its projection. Meanwhile, the jobs and materials have started to come in, which 

count on the current budget. For this reason, the Director is asking to adjust the 

expense lines of the current budget. In order to pay for the adjustments, it would 

require monies to be taken out of the Restricted Funds to be put into the Capital Fund. 

 



Glen Hughes made a motion to adjust various budget expense lines in the amounts 

proposed in the board packet attachment “Agenda 13a proposed budget amendment” 

and move $21,850 from the Library’s Restricted Fund to the Capital Fund. Rachel Cocar 

seconded the motion and a verbal vote was taken: 

Rachel Cocar: aye 

Terry Dunphy: aye 

Glen Hughes: aye 

Kevin Marx: aye 

Marcella Kitson: aye 

Tracey Lawton: aye 

Carol Linkowski: aye 

The motion was carried. 

 

❖ Discuss and approve tools for Director Evaluation 

Committee members created a 1-3 rating scale for the Director. In addition a library 

survey was created to be given to the public. The survey will be able to be completed 

either on paper or on-line, and the link will be provided on various platforms.  The city’s 

human resource department has agreed that they will both give the survey to 

employees and collect the results of the staff survey without the Director’s involvement.  

 

Glen Hughes made a motion to accept the Director Evaluation tool with modifications. 

Terry Dunphy seconded the motion and a verbal vote was taken: 

Rachel Cocar: aye 

Terry Dunphy: aye 

Glen Hughes: aye 

Kevin Marx: aye 

Marcella Kitson: aye 

Tracey Lawton: aye 

Carol Linkowski: aye 

The motion was carried. 

 

❖ Willett Hoffman  

○ All the work in the Director’s office and staff lounge to repair the damage that 

asbestos removal has caused has to be done in a bid process  

○ Willett & Hoffman have provided an estimate for them to handle the process by 

creating bid documents that will recommend which bid to accept and they will 

make sure that the work is done correctly when it is finished. There was much 

discussion as to what specifically Willet & Hoffman would do, so the Director will 



get more information from them. Because of this, It was agreed that this would 

be tabled until next month. 

 

At  7:32 pm, Glen Hughes made a motion to adjourn the meeting.   Terry Dunphy seconded the 

motion, and the meeting was adjourned at 7:32 pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Tracey Lawton, Secretary 

 
















































	8 Oct 2020 Monthly Council Report.pdf
	Cover
	cash
	operating summary
	capital
	recovery chart
	Utilities
	Retirement
	TIFS
	restricted capital
	restricted




